
 

 

 
County Buildings, Martin Street, 

Stafford ST16 2LH 
Telephone: 0300 111 8000 

 
 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
 

To:- The Members of the Staffordshire County Council 
 
Notice is given that the meeting of the Staffordshire County Council will be held in the 
Council Chamber, County Buildings, Stafford at 10.00 am on Thursday, 12 May 2011 to 
deal with the matters set out on the agenda. 
 

Nick Bell 
Chief Executive 

4 May 2011 
 



AGENDA 
(Note: The meeting will begin with prayers) 

 
PART ONE 
 
General Housekeeping and Declaring an Interest 
 

1. Election of Chairman of the Council for the ensuing year  
  
2. Apologies for absence (if any)  
  
3. Declarations of Interest under Standing Order 16.5  
  
4. Confirmation of the minutes of the Council meeting held on 17 March 2011 (Pages 

3 - 10) 
  
5. Election of the Vice-Chairman of the Council for the ensuing year  
  
6. Chairman's Correspondence  
  
 The Chairman will mention a range of recent items of news which may be of interest to 

Members 
  
7. Appointment of the Leader of the Council  
  
8. To set the maximum number of Members of the Cabinet  
  
9. Statement of the Leader of the Council (Pages 11 - 16) 
  
 The Leader will inform the Council about his work and his plans for the Council, and will 

give an overview of decisions taken by the Cabinet (and Portfolio Holders) since the 
previous meeting of the Council 

  
10. Questions  
  
 Questions to be asked by Members of the County Council of the Leader of the Council, 

a Cabinet Member, or a Chairman of a non-Scrutiny Committee.  The question will be 
answered by the relevant Member and the Member asking the question may then ask a 
follow up question which will also be answered 

  
11. Proposed Changes to the Constitution (Pages 17 - 52) 
  
 Report of the Director of Law and Democracy 
  
12. Committee Membership  
  
 To consider the appointment of members to Committees on the nomination of Group 

Leaders (to be circulated at the meeting) 
  
13. Appointment of Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of Committees  
  
 To consider the appointment of Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of Committees (to be 

circulated at the meeting) 
  
14. To consider the report of the Chairman of the Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire 



Fire and Rescue Authority (Pages 53 - 56) 
  
15. Special Urgency Procedures - Quarterly update (Pages 57 - 58) 
  
16. Petitions  
  
 An opportunity for Members to present and speak on petitions submitted by their 

constituents  
  
17. Exclusion of the Public  
  
 The Chairman of the Council will move the following motion so that the County Council 

can consider confidential business in private:- 
 
“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business which 
involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the paragraphs of Part 
1 of Schedule 12A (as amended) of the Local Government Act 1972 indicated below”. 
 
 
PART TWO 
(All reports in this section are on pink paper) 

  
18. Exempt Special Urgency Procedures - Quarterly update (Pages 59 - 60) 
  
 (exemption paragraph 3) 

 
 
(NOTE to Members 
 
(i) The County Council Members’ Club annual meeting, also in the Council Chamber, 
will be held immediately after the Council meeting. 
 
(ii) A thirty minute presentation on the Civil Contingencies Act 2004: Communicating 
with the Public will take place at 2:15 pm or at the conclusion of the Council Meeting, 
whichever the later in the Council Chamber, County Buildings, Martin Street, Stafford) 

  
 
 
 





NOTICES FOR COUNCILLORS 
 

1. Fire/Bomb Alerts 
 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, leave the building immediately, following the fire 
exit signs.  Do not stop to collect personal belongings, do not use the lifts, do not re-
enter the building until told to do so.  
 
2. Attendance Record 
 
Please sign the Attendance Record Book, which will be located at the top of the main 
staircase.  Please ensure that the book is signed again in the afternoon if you are 
attending the adjourned Council meeting. 
 
3. Mobile Phones 
 
Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Council Chamber. 
 
4. Tea/Coffee 
 
Refreshments will be available from 9.30 am. 
 
5. Questions 
 
Questions must be addressed to the Chairman, or to the Leader of the Council or to a 
Portfolio Holder or to the Chairman of a Committee.  Notice in writing of any question 
must be delivered to the office of the Chief Executive at least three clear days before the 
relevant Meeting of the Council i.e. by not later than midnight on Sunday, 8 May 
2011.  All questions and answers will be circulated around the Chamber before the 
commencement of the meeting.  The questioner will be invited to read out his/her 
question.  Similarly, the person responding will read out the reply.  The Chairman will 
then permit the questioner to ask one supplementary question on each question/answer.  
Further information on Questions can be found in Paragraph 8 of Section 11 of the 
Constitution. 
 
NB. Under the new arrangements approved by the Council on 20 May 2010, 
questions for the County Council meeting on 21 July 2011 must reach the Chief 
Executive by not later than midnight on Sunday, 17 July 2011. 
 
6. Notices of Motion 
 
A Notice of Motion must reach the Chief Executive nine clear days before the relevant 
Meeting of the Council, i.e. by not later than midnight on Monday, 2 May 2011.  
Further information on Notices of Motion can be found in Paragraph 11 of Section 11 of 
the Constitution. 
 
NB. Under the new arrangements approved by the Council on 20 May 2010, 
Notices of Motion for the County Council meeting on 21 July 2011 must reach the 
Chief Executive by not later than midnight on Monday, 11 July 2011. 

Agenda Annex

Page 1



GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT 
MEETINGS - WHAT SHOULD YOU SAY 

 

DEFINITION OF WHAT IS A PERSONAL OR PREJUDICIAL INTEREST 
 

A PERSONAL INTEREST is one where your well-being or financial position, or those of 
a relative or a friend would be affected by the decision. 
 

You automatically have a personal interest if you have given notice in the Register of 
Members' Interests under Paragraph 14 and 15, eg. if you are a School Governor 
appointed by the Council. 
 

A PREJUDICIAL INTEREST is where a member of the public knowing the facts would 
reasonably regard the interest as so significant that it would prejudice your judgement of 
the public interest. 
 

WHAT SHOULD YOU SAY? 
 

If you have a PERSONAL interest you can stay but you must disclose its existence and 
its nature to the meeting. 
 

An example of what you should say 
 

"I have a personal interest in item number……… on the agenda.  The 
interest is ………" 

 

If you also have a PREJUDICIAL interest you must withdraw from the room when the matter is 
being discussed. 
 

An example of what you should say 
 

"I have a personal and prejudicial interest in item number……… on the 
agenda.  The interest is ………  I shall leave the room when that matter 
is being discussed" 

 

PLEASE MAKE IT CLEAR WHETHER IT IS A PERSONAL OF PREJUDICIAL 
INTEREST. 
 

It would be helpful if, prior to the commencement of the meeting, members informed 
Democratic Services Unit of any declarations of interest, of which they are aware.  This 
will help in the recording of the declarations in the minutes of the meeting. 
 

DECLARING INTERESTS AT FULL COUNCIL 
 

The Code of Conduct only requires that personal interests (or personal and prejudicial 
interests) are declared where the matter to which the interest relates is being 
considered.  Some items will be mentioned in the papers for Full Council but are not 
actually being considered by Full Council.  In particular, some items are mentioned in 
the Leader’s Statement as having been dealt with in Cabinet but are not actually 
mentioned or discussed at full Council.  In such circumstances the Monitoring Officer’s 
advice to members is that there is no need to declare an interest unless the particular 
matter is mentioned or discussed.  As a general rule, members only need to declare an 
interest at full Council in the following circumstances: 
 

• Where a matter is before the Council for a decision and/or 
• Where the matter in which the member has an interest is specifically mentioned or 

discussed at the Council meeting. 
 

Page 2



Minutes of the County Council Meeting held on 17 March 2011 
 
Present:  
 

Attendance 
 
Ben Adams 
Paul Atkins 
Philip Atkins 
Ray Barron 
Erica Bayliss 
Brian Beale 
John Bernard 
Len Bloomer 
Henry Butter 
Frank Chapman 
John Cooper 
Pat Corfield 
Dylis Cornes 
Peter Davies 
Derek Davis, OBE 
William Day 
Veronica Downes 
Janet Eagland 
 

Ray Easton 
Brian Edwards 
Matthew Ellis 
Terry Finn 
John Francis 
Bob Fraser 
Gill Heath 
Mark Heenan 
Derrick Huckfield 
Christina Jebb 
Ivan Jennings 
Phil Jones 
Philip Jones 
Kathy Lamb 
Mike Lawrence 
Ian Lawson 
Frank Lewis, MBE 
Geoff Locke 

Robert Marshall 
Mary Maxfield 
Geoff Morrison 
Barrie Mycock 
David Nixon 
Jeremy Oates 
Ian Parry 
Kath Perry 
Steve Povey 
Rex Roberts, OBE 
John Rowley 
Liz Staples 
Stephen Sweeney 
Simon Tagg 
Steve Tranter 
John Wells 
Alan White 
Mark Winnington 

 
Apologies for absence:  Lee Bates, Peter Beresford, David Billson, Tim Corbett, 
Geoffrey Martin, Mike Maryon, Michael Oates and Robert Reade 
 
PART ONE 
 
60. Confirmation of the minutes of the Council meeting held on 10 February 
2011 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 10 February 2011 be confirmed. 
 
61. Chairman's Correspondence 
 
Divisional Commander’s Team Achievement Award 
 
The Chairman informed Members that the Staffordshire Moorlands “Safer and Stronger 
Communities Partnership” had recently received an award from Staffordshire Police in 
respect of the set up and promotion of “No Cold Calling Zones” across the Staffordshire 
Moorlands.  These zones were proven as an effective method of reducing incidences of 
doorstep crime and the fear of crime amongst residents. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 3



 

 
62. Leader's Statement 
 
The Leader of the Council presented a Statement outlining his recent work; his plans for 
the Council; and an overview of decisions taken by the Cabinet (and Portfolio Holders) 
since the previous meeting of the Council. 
 
Joint Third Quarter Performance and Budget Monitoring Report 
(Paragraph 2 of the Statement) 
 
In response to questions from Members in relation to how the County Council was 
coping with reductions in the funding from Central Government, Mr. Atkins indicated that 
a decision had been taken to protect and invest in front line services and that, where 
some authorities were cutting services, the County Council was expanding some 
services.  An example of this was the Library Service where proposals were currently in 
hand to provide free Wi-Fi in a number of the County’s Libraries.  He paid tribute to the 
commitment shown by staff and explained that, although the County Council would 
become a leaner organisation over the next few years, it was hoped that this could be 
achieved through natural wastage rather than compulsory redundancies.  He concluded 
by indicating that the County Council was concentrating its resources on service delivery 
and securing better outcomes for the people of Staffordshire whilst, at the same time, 
protecting those who were the most vulnerable. 
 
Staffordshire Transport Asset Management Plan 
(Paragraph 3 of the Statement) 
 
Mr. Chapman indicated that he welcomed the recent announcement that there was to 
be additional investment in highway maintenance to repair the damage caused to the 
county’s roads over the winter period.  He added that this announcement had raised the 
expectations of Parish Councils and that it was important that there was some flexibility 
in the maintenance programme in order to recognise the needs of rural areas.  In 
response, Mr. Atkins confirmed that there was to be an additional £4m investment in 
highway maintenance.  Mr. Marshall added that local members would in future play a 
vital role in identifying local priorities and that this additional investment in highway 
maintenance would be used to make sure that repairs were undertaken properly rather 
than pot holes being “patched”. 
 
Staffordshire Passenger and Accessibility Management Plan – 
Young Persons Travel Card and Concessionary Fares 
(Paragraph 4 of the Statement) 
 
Mr. Beale indicated that he welcomed the recent announcement that the County Council 
was to introduce a 24/7 concessionary travel scheme for the elderly/disabled and also a 
young person’s travel card.  Mrs. Jebb added that whilst she appreciated the 
introduction of the new concessionary fares scheme, it was important to ensure that 
rural areas were served with adequate bus services.  She added that Stoke-on-Trent 
City Council had recently announced its proposal to cease its subsidy of the bus service 
between Stoke-on-Trent and Bagnall which could result in some rural communities 
becoming isolated.  In response, Mr. Atkins indicated that it was important that local 
communities used their bus services if they wished to retain them and that the main 

Page 4



 

thrust behind the concessionary travel scheme and young persons travel card was to 
get more people on to local bus services rather than for the County Council to subsidise 
such services. 
 
In response to a question by Mr. Sweeney, Mr. Atkins indicated that the £1 per journey 
fare that would be available to young persons travel card holders included cross-
boundary services from Staffordshire into Stoke-on-Trent and adjoining counties. 
 
In response to a question from Mr. Jennings concerning the funding of the 
concessionary travel scheme, Mr. Atkins indicated that, previously, District Councils 
were responsible for concessionary travel arrangements but that Central Government 
had recently passed on this responsibility to the County Council and, at the same time, 
had cut the funding it made available to support such schemes.  Despite Staffordshire 
seeing a 16% reduction in the funding for concessionary travel, the County Council had 
managed to introduce a scheme which provided 24/7 travel for elderly people and for 
disabled people and their companions across the whole of the county. 
 
Mrs. Maxfield enquired as to whether the scheme could be extended to include travel by 
train.  In response, Mr. Atkins stated that the scheme currently only covered local bus 
services and that many of the rail operators provided their own discount travel schemes 
such as Student Rail Cards etc. 
 
Mr. Paul Atkins indicated that there was a need to look more closely at the transport 
needs of disabled people.  In response, the Leader of the Council stated that, by 2015, 
all buses will need to be equipped with drop down floors to enable easier access by 
disabled people. 
 
In response to a question from Mr. Wells as to the “go live date” of the Young Persons’ 
Travel Card Scheme, Mr. Marshall stated that the scheme was due to commence on 1 
June 2011 and that young people could register for the new travel card from 1 April 
2011. 
 
Partnerships for Care 
(Paragraph 5 of the Statement) 
 
In response to a question from Mrs. Downes concerning the capital limit for full cost 
contributions from service users in respect of care costs, Mr. Ellis indicated that the 
value of a person’s home was not taken into account when calculating the level of 
contribution and that the Cabinet had asked that further work be undertaken to explore 
the potential for raising the capital limit for full cost contributions above the current level 
of £25,000.  He did however add that the fact that people were living longer was placing 
additional pressures on the care system and that the existing contributions framework 
was outdated, inequitable and failed to promote independence. 
 
Mr. Finn enquired as to how quickly a service user would be reassessed once their 
capital fell below the £25,000 threshold.  In response, Mr. Ellis indicated that the person 
could be reassessed straightaway. 
 
In response to concern expressed by Mr. Huckfield relating to the cost of care provided 
by some companies in the private sector, Mr. Ellis indicated that, with the introduction of 

Page 5



 

the direct payments system, service users had the choice as to from where they 
purchased the care services they required.  He added that it was important that where a 
service user was in receipt of direct payments, that individual was capable of dealing 
with their own finances so that they did not pay over the going rate for the care services 
they required.  He also indicated that the County Council was currently examining ways 
of trying to help people to plan for any care they may need in the future. 
 
63. Questions 
 
There were no questions on this occasion. 
 
64. High Speed Rail (HS2) - Preliminary Discussion 
 
The Council received a report in relation to the public consultation on a High Speed Rail 
Network and more specifically, on a route between London and Birmingham/Lichfield.  
The public consultation had commenced on 28 February 2011 and was due to run until 
the end of July 2011. 
 
Mr Atkins indicated that, whatever people’s views on the proposals, it was necessary to 
try to keep the cost of the public consultation down.  He added that the issues not only 
concerned HS2 between London and Birmingham/Lichfield but also its extension (HS3) 
to Manchester and Leeds. 
 
Mr. Parry expressed the opinion that the proposed high speed rail link would have a 
detrimental impact on employment levels and prosperity within Staffordshire and would 
also damage the local environment.  He also expressed the view that Staffordshire 
could become a commuter belt for London and that the business case for the high 
speed rail network was flawed.  He concluded by indicating that, in his view, it would be 
better to invest on improving the existing rail infrastructure so as to increase capacity. 
 
Mr. Parry moved and Mr. Marshall seconded the following amendment: 
 
 “That the recommendations contained in paragraphs 1 and 2 of the Report be 

amended by the addition of the following recommendation: 
 
 (3) That the County Council adopts a position which opposes the proposed High 

Speed Rail Link on the grounds that: 
 
 (i) Its business case is flawed 
 (ii)  It offers no economic or social benefit to Staffordshire 
 (iii) It is potentially damaging to the economy and prosperity of Staffordshire 
 (iv) It proposes significant and unacceptable environmental damage and 

disruption 
 (v) That investment in infrastructure and transport should focus on improving 

affordable rail and road transportation.” 
 
Mr. Marshall indicated that HS2 would not be “green” and, at its best, government 
indicated that it would be carbon neutral.  He explained that one of his concerns was 
that, in Staffordshire, the proposal would result in an area of equivalent size to 
Manchester being concreted over and that most of the benefits arising from the high 

Page 6



 

speed rail network would go to London, particularly as Staffordshire would not be getting 
a station on HS2. 
 
Mr. Marshall also expressed concern that, if HS2 was to go ahead, there may well be an 
adverse impact upon existing services linking Staffordshire and London.  Furthermore, 
the cost of construction would result in an increase in the national debt and that there 
were other ways to increase existing service capacity which were more cost effective. 
 
A number of Members spoke in support of the recommendations and the proposed 
amendment.  In addition, Mr. Davis, Mr. Easton and Mr. P.E. Jones expressed the view 
that the County Council also needed to consider the wider benefits of the HS2 proposals 
to the UK as a whole and not just its impact on Staffordshire. 
 
Mr. Copper indicated that investment in rail would best be served by concentrating on 
ways to increase capacity rather than speed.  Following a vote, the Chairman declared 
the amendment carried. 
 
RESOLVED – (a) That the views of Members be noted. 
 
(b) That the County Council adopts a position which opposes the proposed High Speed 
Rail Link on the grounds that: 
 
 (i) Its business case is flawed 
 (ii)  It offers no economic or social benefit to Staffordshire 
 (iii)  It is potentially damaging to the economy and prosperity of Staffordshire 
 (iv) It proposes significant and unacceptable environmental damage and 

disruption 
 (v)  That investment in infrastructure and transport should focus on improving 

affordable rail and road transportation 
 
(c) That a further report be presented to the County Council in July 2011 covering 
additional material produced during the consultation and recommending a formal 
response by the County Council. 
 
65. Recommendations to the Council 
 
Treasury Management, Annual Investment and 
Minimum Revenue Provision Strategies 2011/12 
 
RESOLVED – (a) That, in accordance with regulations, the Annual Investment Strategy 
(AIS) 2011/12, comprising investment instruments, credit quality and terms of 
investment (Appendices 1, 2 and 3 to the Report) be adopted. 
 
(b) That the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy 2011/12 (Appendix 4 to the 
Report) be adopted. 
 
Members’ Allowances Scheme – Independent Remuneration  
Panel Report 
 
RESOLVED – (a) That the report of the Independent Remuneration Panel be received. 

Page 7



 

 
(b) That the hourly rate for the Carers/Dependants Allowances in the Members’ 
Allowance Scheme be changed to the actual cost of care up to a maximum of £14.42 
per hour. 
 
(c) The period of office for Ray Betteridge, Patrick Grange, Jane Landick, Gerald Griffin 
and Ian Starkie as members of the Independent Remuneration Panel be extended to 31 
March 2012. 
 
Staffordshire Local Transport Plan 
 
RESOLVED – That the Local Transport Plan be approved and that the Cabinet Member 
for Highways and Transport be authorised to make any necessary minor changes 
required to the Plan prior to its publication. 
 
66. Report of the Chairman of the Staffordshire Police Authority 
 
In response to a question from Mrs. Maxfield concerning proposals to reshape the Force 
and the effect this may have on local police stations, Mrs. Heath indicated that the 
proposals would result in the police force’s divisional boundaries coinciding with the 
District/Borough Council boundaries.  She added that there was a commitment to keep 
police services in local communities and that the opportunity to share buildings with 
other local partners would be examined. 
 
Mr. Francis enquired about the efficiencies which could be achieved through combining 
“back offices” with another public body such as the Fire and Rescue Authority.  In 
response, Mrs. Heath indicated that this was being investigated by the Force. 
 
RESOLVED – That the periodic report of the Staffordshire Police Authority be received. 
 
67. Report of the Chairman of the Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire Fire and 
Rescue Authority 
 
RESOLVED – That the Periodic Report of the Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire Fire and 
Rescue Authority be adopted. 
 
68. Petitions 
 
Westway Public House, West Way, Stafford 
 
Mr. Jennings presented a petition from local residents seeking the retention of the 
Westway Public House, the site of which was the subject of a planning application for 
the provision of a care home for the elderly. 
 
Proposed Highway Improvements in Derby Street, Leek 
 
Mr. Povey presented a petition from local residents objecting to the proposals to install a 
Pelican Crossing and remove a roundabout in Derby Street, Leek due to the detrimental 
impact of these works on the adjacent Nicholson War Memorial. 
 

Page 8



 

Retention of Service 44 between Hanley and Bagnall 
 
The Chairman presented a petition (on behalf of Mrs Jebb) from local residents seeking 
support for the retention of Service 44 between Hanley and Bagnall following an 
announcement by Stoke-on-Trent City Council of its intention to cease to subsidise the 
service. 
 
Re-establishment of Trees next to Pearl Brook/Queensway, Stafford 
 
Mr. Heenan presented a petition from local residents seeking the re-establishment of 
trees/shrubs next to Pearl Brook/Queensway, Stafford following their recent felling. 
 
 
 

  
Chairman 

be available on request. 
Documents referred to in these minutes as Schedules are not appended, but will be attached to the 
signed copy of the Minutes of the meeting.  Copies, or specific information contained in them, may be 
available on request. 
 

Page 9



Page 10



LEADER’S STATEMENT 

Statement of the Leader of the Council 
 
1. Staffordshire Prosperity Update 
 
The Government’s announcemnt that two schemes in the Stoke-on-Trent and 
Staffordshire LEP area (Middleport Pottery in Burslem and Alstom in Stafford) 
will benefit from the new Regional Growth Fund is a major achievement that will 
help attract jobs and prosperity to the county. 
 
There are also encouraging signs of economic confidence returning, with JCB 
recruiting increasing numbers of workers and Hilton Hotels developing two 
hotels on a single site in East Staffordshire 
 
(Cabinet – 20 April 2011) 
 
2. Staffordshire Families and Communities Update 
 
The county council continues to play an active part in improving the lives of 
Staffordshire people, even in these times of financial constraint. We are 
concentrating on priorities that meet our twin goals of supporting economic 
recovery while looking after the most vulnerable people in our communities. 
 
While other authorities are scaling back their services, we continue to roll out 
major initiatives such as our concessionary travel cards, 20mph zones and we 
continue to perform at a higher level than the national average, for instance with 
the recent positive assessment of the youth offending service. 
 
The County Council is also supporting young Staffordshire sportspeople who 
are making the grade on the national stage and some with an eye on the 2012 
Olympics.  Forty-two young were recently presented with a cheque from the 
Council’s Young People’s Sports Performance Grant Scheme  
 
(Cabinet – 20 April 2011) 
 
3. Appointment of Director of Children's Services 
 
The County Council must designate a member of its senior leadership team as 
its statutory Director of Children’s Services.  Sally Rees, who currently holds the 
post, will be leaving in September and the intention had been to transfer the role 
at that time to Eric Robinson, the Deputy Chief Executive and Director for 
People   
 
The Cabinet have, however, agreed that it would be better to transfer the 
statutory role to Eric Robinson as from 1 May 2011 as the overall responsibility 
for the commissioning (and delivery) of services for children has been 
integrated with services for people and families under Eric Robinson, Sally 
Rees will continue to support Eric in the role until she leaves the Council later in 
the year. 
 
(Cabinet – 20 April 2011) 

Agenda Item 9

Page 11



LEADER’S STATEMENT 

4. Renewable Energy Generation on the Council's Land and Buildings 
 
Energy conservation and renewable energy generation has the potential to save 
the council money and also to generate additional revenue.  It is therefore 
important that the Council has a clear policy statement that sets out its 
ambitions in this regard. 
 
The Cabinet have therefore approved the following statement of policy with 
respect to renewable energy generation on the council’s land and buildings: 
 

“Staffordshire County Council recognises the need to invest in both energy 
conservation measures and renewable energy generation as a means of 
reducing its carbon dioxide emissions and its fuel costs.   
 
The council does not wish to pursue the option of commercial-scale wind 
energy generation on its land holding because of the potential environmental 
impacts of that technology.  The council does, however, have an aspiration 
to bring forward sufficient projects involving all other renewable energy 
technologies to ensure that it remains on course to meet its overall carbon 
reduction target.” 

 
The policy statement will make it clear that the County Council recognises the 
need to invest in energy conservation and renewable energy in order to reduce 
fuel costs and carbon emissions.  It also makes it clear that the County Council 
will not be pursuing commercial scale wind energy generation on county council 
land because of the impact of this technology on the environment and local 
residents. 
 
(Cabinet – 20 April 2011) 
 
5. Publication of statutory proposal to discontinue Blake Valley 
Technology College 
 
Earlier this year, the County Council initiated a period of formal consultation on 
the proposal to close Blake Valley Technology College on 31 August 2011. 
Implementation of the closure will be conditional upon the Secretary of State for 
Education entering into a legal Funding Agreement with Staffordshire 
University, the proposed sponsor, to establish a new Academy on the school 
site.  
 
The key themes arising from the consultation responses were admissions; 
staffing, curriculum, building works, academy sponsorship and requests for 
further information. Seventeen respondents were in favour of Blake Valley 
staying open and 15 felt the Academy proposal presented a good opportunity. 
 
After considering the comments made as part of the consultation, the Cabinet 
were of the view that this proposal provided a tremendous opportunity to 
transform the learning environment in Blake, both in terms of the access to 
funding for investment in the school and also the link with the University as the 
sponsor.  Accordingly, they have decided that the County Council should 

Page 12



LEADER’S STATEMENT 

proceed with publication of the statutory notice to discontinue the Blake Valley 
Technology College. 
 
(Cabinet – 20 April 2011) 
 
6. 2010/11 Joint Fourth Quarter/Outturn Performance and Budget 
Monitoring Report 
 
The County Council is continuing to respond to the challenges that lie ahead 
through an ambitious programme of innovation and by operating more 
efficiently. 
 
We have achieved this while continuing to keep a tight control on our finances. 
Our revenue budget will be slightly overspent to the tune of around £4 million or 
approximately 1% of the budget, but this is in the context of the need to make 
£21 million of savings on the past budget and therefore represents a 
tremendous achievement. 
 
One of the highlights from the year has been the establishment of the Stoke on 
Trent and Staffordshire Local Enterprise Partnership which is now widely 
regarded as one of the most advanced in the country.  This was demonstrated 
by the highly successful business engagement event on 7 January attended by 
over 250 business leaders, and clearly shows our willingness to support local 
business as the creators of future prosperity in the county. 
 
The enhancement of the Concessionary Travel scheme by the County Council 
also stands out.  As from the 1 April, this will allow pass holders to travel free of 
charge at all times on buses across the county, and for certain categories of 
disabled people to be accompanied at no cost by a companion.  On top of this 
we have agreed to introduce (from the 1t June) a discounted travel scheme for 
all young people aged 19 and under allowing travel on local buses anywhere 
within Staffordshire for a maximum fare of £1.    
 
(Cabinet – 20 April 2011) 
 
7. Keele University Science and Business Park - IC5 
 
The Keele University Science and Business Park (Keele) is a key site for 
Staffordshire as it has the potential to deliver the high technology, high quality 
jobs that will drive the future prosperity of Staffordshire.  To help deliver this 
proposal we have been working with Keele on a proposal to construct 30,000 sq 
ft of new offices in a centre known as Incubator 5 (IC5).  IC5 will help to support 
existing high tech businesses to expand their operations to create new jobs and 
diversify the local economy. 
 
It was hoped that the project would attract funding via the Regional Growth 
Fund but, sadly, the bid was not successful.  Accordingly, the Cabinet have 
requested that the business case for the development of the IC5 building project 
be revised and that a further report be submitted to their next meeting. 
 
(Cabinet – 20 April 2011) 

Page 13



LEADER’S STATEMENT 

Portfolio Holder Delegated Decisions 
 
Portfolio holders have recently taken decisions in respect of the following 
matters:  
 

• The publication of proposals to change the designation of Blackfriars 
Special School, Newcastle-under-Lyme from that of a school for children 
with physical disabilities to a generic special school. 

 
• The approval of the 2011/12 Capital Grants Scheme for village halls and 

community centres. 
 

• The granting of a 10 year lease of the former upper building at Great 
Wood Community Primary School, Tean to Checkley Parish Council with 
Tean Village Hall Committee. 

 
• The granting of a 6 year tenancy of Holding No. 1, Yarlet Estate. 

 
• The granting of a 3 year Farm Business Tenancy of Holding No. 50, 

Plardiwick Estate. 
 

• Approval to the County Council becoming the host authority for West 
Midlands Councils with effect from 1 June 2011 and the transfer of the 
West Midlands Councils’ staff to Staffordshire County Council under 
TUPE regulations. 

 
• For the County Council to not take up the power to make any post-

compulsory education discretionary awards for the year 2011/12. 
 
7. Forward Plan 
 
The Cabinet have approved the Forward Plan for the period 1 May to 31 August 
2011, which contains details of the decisions which the Cabinet are expected to 
take during that period.   
 
8. Shugborough Revisited 
 
I was honoured to officially open “Shugborough Revisited” on 30 March 2011. 
The former private apartments of Lord Patrick Lichfield are now open to visitors 
for the first time. They provide a unique insight into the private life of one of the 
most iconic figures of the swinging ‘60s.  
 
In addition, the island arboretum opened for public access providing an 
improved offer to those visiting the great estate. These two extra attractions will 
no doubt help to increase the number of tourists and Staffordshire families who 
spend time at Shugbrough, thereby boosting the county’s economy.  

Page 14



LEADER’S STATEMENT 

 
9. Local Government Association (LGA) work 
 
During late March 2011, I was pleased to participate in a round table discussion 
at the LGA’s headquarters in London regarding the challenge presented 
nationally by the long term funding of social care and support. This was my 
opportunity, on behalf of Staffordshire, to influence the Commission on Funding 
of Care and Support which will produce its vital review for the government 
during the summer of 2011. I made sure that Staffordshire’s views will help 
inform one of the most crucial current policy debates. 
 
10. Staffordshire Parish Council Association 
 
In Staffordshire, we have three tiers of local government. The parish councils 
are a vital local layer of representation and the county council welcomes the 
contribution that they make to building empowered and active communities. As 
part of our regular liaison, on 5 April 2011 I chaired the annual meeting of the 
Staffordshire Parish Council Association (executive members) with senior 
representatives of the county council. We discussed a number of issues 
including the national policy developments regarding Big Society and localism. 
Both parties are committed to continuing our excellent working relationship and 
ensuring that opportunities for closer working are fully exploited.  
 
11. Whistle stop tours 
 
I am making sure that I am getting out and about around the county and over 
the last few weeks I have toured Staffordshire Moorlands, Newcastle and 
Tamworth. 
 
These visits included the Moorlands Connects Bus Service which is providing a 
lifeline to rural communities; the award winning Room 21 in Leek which brings 
together family support in one place; a pioneering extra-care development for 
older people in Madeley which has received an unprecedented level of 
involvement from the local community; a one stop shop in Chesterton run by 
local volunteers, Aspire PM Training and its work with young people and 
apprentices; major highways works to develop Ventura Park which will help to 
promote local economic development and a whistle stop tour of the many 
community initiatives across Tamworth ending at the new Community Fire 
Station. These are just some examples (there are many more) of innovative 
projects led or supported by the county council which are making a real 
difference to families and local communities or contributing to the prosperity of 
the county.   
 
 
 P.E.B. Atkins 
 Leader of the Council 

Page 15



Page 16



 

Annual Council – 12 May 2011  
 

Proposed Changes to the Constitution 
 
 

1. Recommendations 
 
1.1 That Council be recommended to make the amendments to the relevant sections of 
the Constitution in relation to:- 
 

• Revised Structures and Remits for Scrutiny Committees (Section 7) 
• The abolition of the Safety of Sports Grounds Panel of the Planning Committee 

(Section 8) 
• The Officer Scheme of Delegation of Decision Making Powers (Section 10 – 

Appendix 1) 
 
1.2 That the Constitution, as revised, be approved by Council. 
 
2. Report of the Director of Law and Democracy 
 
2.1 The adoption of a New Way of Working for the County Council in July 2010 and the 
subsequent revisions to decision making structures have triggered a review of the 
County Council’s Constitution to make it more suited to purpose. 
 
3. Summary of Proposed Amendments 
 
3.1 Scrutiny - The current structure of eight Scrutiny Committees has been revised to 
provide seven Scrutiny Committees, the remits of which reflect the nine agreed priority 
outcomes for the County Council.  Details are attached at Appendix 2.   
The key ambition in revising the structure was to ensure effective accountability of 
Cabinet Members.  In recent months the Scrutiny Committees have developed the use 
of Cabinet Member Accountability Sessions to gain a fuller picture of the performance of 
portfolios and achievement of outcomes.  This approach will be developed further by the 
new Committees.  In addition further development work will be carried out on how the 
county council conducts scrutiny to enhance it’s contribution to the target operating 
model. 
 
3.2 Safety of Sports Grounds Panel – The County Council’s statutory duty to oversee 
the safety of sports grounds in Staffordshire is discharged by the Planning Committee’s 
Safety of Sports Ground Panel with the majority of the functions delegated to the Public 
Protection Manager.  In view of the technical and enforcement nature of the role the 
Planning Committee has agreed to abolish the member level Panel and to delegate all 
responsibilities to the Public Protection Manager (in consultation with the Chairman of 
the Planning Committee when legal proceedings are instigated). 
 
This proposal was referred to the Audit Committee in view of their role in overseeing the 
operation of the Constitution. That Committee requested the submission of an annual 
report to the Planning Committee on actions taken by the Public Protection Manager, for 
monitoring purposes.  
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 17



3.3 Officer Delegation Scheme - Full Council has previously approved the 
restructuring of the organisation and posts making up the Senior and Wider Leadership 
Teams.  The Officer Scheme of Delegation has subsequently been amended/revised 
primarily to ensure that existing delegated powers are allocated to the appropriate 
service area/officer.  From a number of changes made the most notable include the 
authorisation of the Director of Strategy and Transformation and Assistant Chief 
Executive to act as host Chief Executive to West Midlands Council, authorisation for the 
Director for Place and Director for Place and Deputy Chief Executive to act under 
legislation relating to reservoirs and the increase from £2000 to £5000 as the maximum 
payment which Senior Leadership Team members can make in settlement of complaints 
against the Council.  Amended proposals are shown at Appendix 3. 
 
It should be noted that the Scheme for PEOPLE will be presented for consideration after 
the integration of care services with Health has been completed and the governance 
arrangements finalised. 
  

Page 18



Appendix 1 
 
 
Equalities implications: 
 
None 
 
Legal implications: 
 
None 
 
Resource and Value for money implications: 
 
None 
 
Risk implications: 
 
It is important that the Council reviews its Constitution regularly to ensure that it remains 
fit for purpose. 
 
 
 
Author’s Name: Julie Plant 
Ext. No.: 6135 
Room No.: 5 County Buildings 
 
 

Page 19



Page 20



Extract from Re-Draft of Section 7 – Overview and Scrutiny 
 
3. Terms of Reference of Scrutiny Committees 
 
3.1 The Council currently has seven Scrutiny Committees, which have the 

following terms of reference:- 
 

3.2 The Corporate Review Committee is the Council’s Principal Scrutiny 
Committee.  It is responsible for co-ordinating and approving the 
scrutiny work programmes, co-ordinating and overseeing the work of 
the other Scrutiny Committees to avoid duplication of work and to 
ensure coherence of approach to cross cutting policy themes by 
determining whether one Committee shall take lead responsibility for a 
cross cutting policy theme or that the work be shared between one or 
more Scrutiny Committees. 

 
 The Committee is also responsible for:- 
 

• Holding the Leader and Deputy Leader of the Council to account for 
their work and performance. 

• Scrutiny of the Council’s work to achieve its priority that 
Staffordshire’s people are involved in shaping the delivery of public 
services. 

• Scrutiny of the Council’s overall performance and approach to 
managing performance and Strategic Corporate Planning 

• Scrutiny of the Council’s ongoing programme of improvement and 
transformation. 

• Scrutiny of the Council’s approach to understanding its Customers 
and Customer Services. 

• Scrutiny of the Local Enterprise Partnership 
• Dealing with any Executive decisions that have been called in by 

following the procedures outlined in paragraph 17 of this Section. 
 
3.3 The Health Scrutiny Committee is responsible for:- 

 
• Scrutiny of matters relating to the planning, provision and operation 

of health services in the Authority's area, including public health, in 
accordance with regulations made under the Health and Social 
Care Act 2001 and subsequent guidance. 

• Scrutiny of the Council’s work to achieve its priority that 
Staffordshire is a place where people live longer, healthier and 
fulfilling lives including scrutiny of Adult Social Care and wellbeing. 

• Scrutiny of the ongoing work to develop closer partnership working 
between the Council and the NHS. 

 
3.3.1 The Health Scrutiny Committee has the power to make reports and 

recommendations to NHS bodies conferred by the Health and Social 
Care Act 2001. 

 

Appendix 2 

Page 21



3.3.2 The Health Scrutiny Committee may, within the scope of its allocated 
roles and responsibilities, respond independently to health related 
consultations from Government and external agencies. 

 
3.4 The Enterprise, Environment and Transport Scrutiny Committee is 

responsible for:- 
• Scrutiny of the Council’s work to achieve its priority that 

Staffordshire’s economy prospers and grow, together with the jobs, 
skills, qualifications and aspirations to support it. Specifically this 
may involve scrutiny of:- 
o Inward Investment 
o Tourism 

• Scrutiny of the Council’s work to achieve its priority that 
Staffordshire is a place where people can easily and safely access 
everyday facilities and activities through the highways and 
transport networks.  Specifically this may involve scrutiny of:- 
o Highways management 
o Public Transport 
o Emergency Planning in relation to transport and infrastructure 

(including Flood risks) 
• Scrutiny of the Council’s work to support Staffordshire’s 

environment including:- 
o Achieving its priority that Staffordshire’s communities are 

places where people and organisations proactively tackle 
climate change, gaining financial benefit and reducing carbon 
emissions. 

o How Staffordshire deals with waste 
 
3.5 The Safeguarding Scrutiny Committee is responsible for scrutiny of 

the Council’s work to achieve its priority that In Staffordshire’s 
communities vulnerable people are able to live independent and safe 
lives, supported where this is required.  Specifically this may involve 
Scrutiny of:- 
o Safeguarding Children 
o Children’s Social Care and wellbeing  
o Services for safeguarding vulnerable adults 
 
In fulfilling its responsibilities, the Committee will be aware of 
opportunities for joint working with both the Health Scrutiny and the 
Education and Skills Scrutiny Committees in linked areas. 

 
3.6 The Education Scrutiny Committee is responsible for scrutiny of the 

Council’s work to achieve its priority that Staffordshire’s children and 
young people can get the best start in life and receive a good 
education so that they can make a positive contribution to their 
communities.  Specifically this may involve Scrutiny of:- 
o Schools and services to schools 
o Educational achievement 
o 14-19 Learning including colleges, skills centres and training 

provision. 

Page 22



3.7 The Communities, Crime and Culture Scrutiny Committee is 
responsible for:- 
• Scrutiny of the Council’s work to ensure Staffordshire’s 

communities can access, enjoy and benefit from a range of 
learning, recreational and cultural activities.  Specifically, this may 
involve scrutiny of:- 
o Libraries, arts and museums 
o Sports and the 2012 olympics 

• Scrutiny of the Council’s work to achieve its priority that 
Staffordshire is a place where people can live safely - increasingly 
free from crime, the causes of crime and the fear of crime.  As part 
of this responsibility the committee is the Council’s designated 
Crime and Disorder Committee This may include scrutiny of:- 
o Community Safety and the work of local Community Safety 

Partnerships. 
o Work to reduce crime associated with Drug and Alcohol abuse 

• Scrutiny of the Council’s overall approach to partnership 
arrangements including:- 
o The relationship with the 3rd Sector 
o ‘Total Staffordshire’ work across the public sector 

 
3.8 The Assets and Budget Scrutiny Committee is responsible for 

scrutiny of whether the Council is allocating and using its resources 
effectively to achieve the priorities set out in the strategic plan.  
Specifically this will involve:- 
• Scrutiny of the development of the Council’s Medium Term 

Financial Strategy, Annual Budget and Council Tax setting process 
• Scrutiny of the Council’s support services including Finance, ICT, 

Human Resources, Organisational Development, Legal and 
Member Services 

• Scrutiny of how the Council manages its property and assets 
including Treasury Management. 

• Scrutiny of the Council’s approach to trading services, including the 
Nexxus trading vehicle. 

 

Page 23



Page 24



Appendix 3 
 

SCHEME OF DELEGATION TO OFFICERS 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 

1. In order to support the day to day running of the County Council and its services, 
Senior Leadership Team members have been given delegated powers to 
exercise some of the County Council’s functions and services.  Powers are 
delegated by the Council under the provisions of the Local Government Act 1972 
(Section 101) and by the Executive under the Local Government Act 2000 
(section 15)  

 
2. Subject to certain conditions* Cabinet members have delegated powers to take 

decisions on any matter which falls within their portfolio and which is not 
delegated to officers under this scheme of delegation. 

 
Because this scheme of delegation does not itemise every type of decision which 
officers can take there will be occasions when responsibility for decision making 
could rest with either the cabinet member or the officer. 
 
The following criteria are suggested to help distinguish between cabinet member 
and officer level decisions.   
 
NOTE this criteria is intended to provide a guide and is not exhaustive: 
 

  
Officer Decision Uncontroversial 
 Related to ‘internal’ matter 
 Covered by Scheme of Delegation to officers 
 In accordance with agreed policy and budget 

provision  
 Related to current/existing service provision 
  
Cabinet Member Decision Controversial 
 Direct impact on ‘Customers’ 
 Politically Sensitive 
 Not covered by policy or budget provision 
 Related to new service provision/innovation 

         
 

3. Table 1 of this Appendix sets out the general powers delegated to all Senior 
Leadership Team members. 

 
4. Tables 2 to 7 set out the specific delegations to individual Senior Leadership 

Team members relating to their areas of responsibility 
 

5. The following matters may not be delegated to a Senior Leadership Team 
member:- 

 

Page 25



• Any matter reserved to the full Council; 
• Any matter which by law may not be delegated to an officer; 
• Any matter reserved to the Cabinet or a Committee or Panel; 
• Any matter which constitutes a key decision; 
• Any power to make a formal response on behalf of the County Council to any 

White Paper, Green Paper, Government Consultation Paper or draft 
European Union Directive without reference first to the relevant Cabinet 
Member, Leader of the Council or the Chairman of the Committee concerned, 
except where timescales do not allow it, when the Chief Executive is 
authorised to respond after discussion with them.  

 
6. All Senior Leadership Team members (or any successors appointed under any 

re-organisation) are authorised to exercise the powers of the Council (both 
Executive and Non-Executive) relating to their areas of responsibility including 
professional and managerial functions relating to his/her service subject to the 
limitations and reservations of the scheme. 

 
7. In the event of the relevant Senior Leadership Team member not being available 

for any reason his/her Deputy or the next most appropriate senior officer included 
in the Wider Leadership Team shall be authorised to exercise the delegated 
powers. 

 
8. Every Senior Leadership Team member may authorise officers in his/her 

department/service area to exercise on his/her behalf functions delegated to 
him/her, provided the delegatee holds any qualifications necessary for the 
exercise of the power. The Senior Leadership Team member shall remain 
accountable and responsible for any decisions taken in his/her name.  All Sub-
Delegation schemes shall be in writing, with copies deposited with the Monitoring 
Officer. 

 
9. At the total discretion of the relevant Senior Leadership Team member any officer 

may have the delegated authority suspended, reviewed or limited in specific 
circumstances (ie a specific exclusion) (NB this is not to be considered as a 
disciplinary matter). 

 
10. When exercising delegated powers, Senior Leadership Team members must 

ensure that any actions are in accordance with the policies and decisions of the 
County Council, this Constitution, Financial Regulations and Procurement 
Regulations and not outside the powers and duties of the Council under law. 

 
11. When exercising delegated powers, Senior Leadership Team members are 

delegated to consult such other officers and/or the Chief Executive, the Director 
of Law and Democracy and the Director of Finance and Resources as may be 
appropriate in the circumstances and shall have regard to any advice given. 

 
12. Senior Leadership Team members may consult the appropriate Cabinet Member, 

Cabinet or a Committee before exercising delegated powers and, following this 
consultation, elect not to exercise their delegated powers. 

 

Page 26



13. Senior Leadership Team members must consult the Local Member(s) for an area 
affected by a proposed decision prior to making that decision 

 
14. Senior Leadership Team members must keep Local Members informed of events 

being organised in their area in connection with the exercise of their delegated 
powers (eg Public meetings, meetings with campaign groups) 

 
15. Before taking any decisions Officers are under a duty to satisfy themselves that 

they have delegated power to do so and that they have undertaken appropriate 
consultation  

 
16. The Cabinet and Committees and Panels of the Council reserve the right to take 

decisions on any matter delegated to an officer, provided that the subject matter 
is within their area of responsibility 

 
17. The advice of the Director of Law and Democracy and the Director of Finance 

and Resources must be sought when a Senior Leadership Team member 
proposes to exercise delegated powers on behalf of the Cabinet if there is doubt 
as to whether the proposed exercise is contrary to the policy framework or 
contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the budget. 

 
18. Where a Senior Leadership Team member is of the opinion that any matter 

delegated to him/her may involve the payment of compensation for which no 
specific budgetary provision has been made no decision shall be made without 
reference to, and approval by, the Cabinet or a Committee (as appropriate) 

 
19. The Senior Leadership Team member must ensure that decisions made under 

this Scheme are supported by relevant documentation and evidence 
 

20. Where the delegated power specifies whether the function is an Executive 
responsibility, Non-Executive (ie Council) or a Local Choice function; any 
misattribution of a function shall not prevent the exercise of the delegated power. 

 
21. In addition to the delegations set out in this scheme, the Council or Cabinet can 

arrange for specific delegations on a particular matter  
 

*For a detailed explanation of Cabinet Member delegated powers see 
Section 6 of this Constitution  

 

Page 27



Page 28



     TABLE 1 
 

DELEGATIONS TO ALL SENIOR LEADERSHIP TEAM MEMBERS 
 

 DELEGATION OVERALL 
RESPONSIBLE 
BODY 

1. To exercise, within the approved budget, the day to day 
administrative and operational management of those 
services, staff and resources placed under the control of 
the Senior Leadership Team member. Any decisions 
made as part of this delegation: 
• Shall not be key decisions 
• Shall relate to maintaining the operation or 

effectiveness of those services or incidental to the 
discharge of the Council’s functions 

• Shall comply with the Council’s Policy Framework or 
a policy decision taken by Council 

COUNCIL/ 
CABINET 
 
 
 

2. To take all steps to implement any decisions taken by 
the Council or under delegation. 

COUNCIL/ 
CABINET 

3. To take all steps as may be required to maintain the 
operation and effectiveness of services; such steps to 
include: 

• The institution, defence, withdrawal or 
compromise of claims or legal proceedings (civil 
or criminal) connected with any function or 
service for which the Senior Leadership Team 
member is responsible 

• The commencement of criminal proceedings for 
any breach of any law/by-law within the services 
and functions for which the Senior Leadership 
Team member is responsible 

• The pursuance of the recovery of costs incurred 
by the County Council as part of any legal 
proceedings 

• The exercise of statutory powers to enter land or 
premises and/or carry out inspections for the 
purposes connected with the services or functions 
for which the Senior Leadership Team member is 
responsible  

• To exercise the County Council’s statutory 
powers  to require information as to the 
ownership, occupation or use of land or premises 
or otherwise  

• To incur expenditure on repairs and maintenance 
within the limits established via the Council’s 
Strategic Property Board.   

• To select applicants for inclusion, or vary the 
terms of approval for, and suspend firms from, 

COUNCIL/ 
CABINET 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



 DELEGATION OVERALL 
RESPONSIBLE 
BODY 

any list of approved contractors for the 
maintenance of which that Senior Leadership 
Team member is responsible (Any proposal to 
delete a firm from a list of approved contractors 
must be the subject of consultation with the 
Director of Law and Democracy). 

4. To appoint staff below Wider Leadership Team level 
within structures and budgets approved by the Council 
and to take decisions relating to staffing and personnel 
matters in accordance with the Council’s agreed policies 
and personnel procedures 
(Senior Leadership Team members’ involvement in 
specific Wider Leadership Team appointments is as 
specified at section 10 of this Constitution) 

COUNCIL 
 
 

5. To implement, in the areas for which they are 
responsible, corporate personnel policies and nationally 
and locally determined conditions of service adopted by 
the Council 

COUNCIL 
 

6. Following consultation with the relevant cabinet member 
to enter into agreement for the provision of services to a 
third party and make charges therefore subject to 
confirmation by the Director of Law and Democracy that 
the activity is not ultra vires 

COUNCIL/ 
CABINET 

7. Following advice from the Head of Human Resources, to 
enter into agreements with other local authorities for the 
placing of staff at the disposal of other authorities 

COUNCIL 
 

8. To authorise the acquisition of assets or services 
necessary for the day to day performance of the 
Council’s business or fulfilment of any matter authorised 
by a cabinet member for which a budget has been 
approved 

CABINET 

9. To determine adjustments to annual fees and charges in 
line with the provisions of Financial Regulations 

COUNCIL 
 

10. To maintain record of all complaints made in respect of 
the services for which the Senior Leadership Team 
member is responsible and deal with them in 
accordance with the complaints procedure approved by 
the County Council or as required by specific legislation 

CABINET 
 

11. To incur expenditure of up to £5000 in making an ex-
gratia payment in order to resolve a complaint made 
against the County Council; any proposal to pay an sum 
in excess of that amount to be reported  to Cabinet or 
Committee as appropriate. 

CABINET 
 

12. To prepare and maintain plans to give effect to the 
provisions of any County or District Emergency Plan 

COUNCIL 
 

 

Page 30



TABLE 2 
 

DELEGATIONS TO THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

 
DELEGATION 

OVERALL 
RESPONSIBLE 

BODY 
1. To be the Council’s Head of Paid Service. COUNCIL 
2. Not withstanding any other provision of this Constitution,  after 
discussion, if practicable, with the Leader of the Council or the 
relevant Portfolio Holder and/or Chairman, as the case may be, 
to take action not involving a key decision as he deems to be 
necessary in matters requiring urgent consideration and which, 
because of the timescale involved, or the need to safeguard the 
interests of the County Council, cannot wait for the next 
following meeting of the Council, the Cabinet or Committee, as 
the case may be.  Any action taken under this delegation shall 
be reported to the next meeting of the Council, Cabinet or 
Committee as necessary. 

COUNCIL/CABINET 

3. To appoint from time to time, for such duration and in such 
circumstances and subject to such conditions as the Chief 
Executive may specify, a Chief Officer to act as Deputy to the 
Chief Executive, such Deputy to have (when authorised to act) 
all the powers, duties and responsibilities of the Chief Executive 
as the County Council's Head of Paid Service.  Notification of 
such appointment and its applicable duration, circumstances 
and conditions shall be given in writing by the Chief Executive 
to the Leader of the Council, Monitoring Officer and Director of 
Finance and Resources. 

COUNCIL 

4. To be the Proper Officer and the County Council's Returning 
Officer for the purpose of the election of County Councillors and 
to undertake all the duties of those offices pursuant to the 
Representation of the People Act 1983, and the Local 
Government Act 1972. 

COUNCIL 

5. To give public notice of any vacancy in the office of Councillor 
pursuant to Sections 86 and 87 of the Local Government Act 
1972. 

COUNCIL 
6.To a pp To approve and implement national and provincial pay awards, 

after consultation with the Director of Finance and Resources, 
as soon as possible after agreement and notification from the 
appropriate body, subject to any element of discretion being 
referred to the Cabinet for consideration. 

COUNCIL 

7. To decide exceptional cases and any question about the 
interpretation or administration of the County Council’s Long 
Service Awards Scheme. 

COUNCIL 
 

Page 31



Page 32



TABLE 3 
 

DELEGATIONS TO THE DIRECTOR OF LAW AND DEMOCRACY 
 

 DELEGATED POWER OVERALL 
RESPONSIBLE 
BODY 

1.  To be the Council’s Monitoring Officer COUNCIL 
2.  To take and implement any decision which he is empowered 

to take in accordance with Financial Regulations in his 
capacity as Director of Law and Democracy. 

COUNCIL 
 
 

3.  To be the County Council’s Solicitor and Head of Legal 
Services and to take all necessary steps, including the 
obtaining of Counsel’s advice, in connection with any matter 
concerning the County Council. 

COUNCIL 
 
 

4.  To be the Senior Responsible Officer on behalf of the 
Council in relation to the Regulation of Investigatory Powers 
Act 2000 including responsibility for approving and 
authorising officers to act as: 

a) An Authorising Officer in relation to the Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act 2000 

b) A designated person and single point of contact in 
relation to the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 
2000 

COUNCIL 
 

5.  To be the Proper Officer for any purpose for which the County 
Council has not designated another officer to be Proper 
Officer. 

COUNCIL 
 
 

6.  In consultation with the relevant Director(s), to make 
amendments to the Scheme of Sub-Delegations to reflect 
future changes in organisational structures, working 
practices, and future changes in relevant legislation and 
regulations. 

COUNCIL 
 
 
 

7.  To be (along with the Director of Finance and Resources) 
the County Council’s authorised officer for the purpose of 
giving certificates under the Local Government(Contracts) 
Act 1997. 
* The County Council has indemnified the Director of Law 
and Democracy and the Director of Finance and Resources 
against any claims made against them (including costs 
incurred by and awarded against them) and will not itself 
make claims against them for any loss or damage (other 
than claims falling within the cover provided to their officers 
under any policy of insurance taken out by the officer) 
occasioned by neglect, act, error or omission committed by 
such officer in the course of or in connection with signing a 
certificate within the meaning of the Local Government 
(Contracts) Act 1997.  This indemnity will not apply where 
the loss or damage results directly or indirectly from the 
commission of a criminal offence of which the officer is 
convicted, or results directly or indirectly from the fraud or 

COUNCIL 
 

Page 33



 DELEGATED POWER OVERALL 
RESPONSIBLE 
BODY 

dishonesty of the officer, or where the officer disregards a 
decision by the County Council that the certificate should not 
be given. 

8.  To sign any documentation or take appropriate steps to 
implement or effect compliance with any Council, Cabinet or 
Committee resolution or an elected member or officer acting 
under delegated powers. 

COUNCIL 
 

9.  To be the Authorised Signatory for the purpose of attesting 
the affixation of the Common Seal of the County Council. 

COUNCIL 
 

10.  To maintain the registers of:- 
• The financial and other interests of members and co-

opted members of the County Council as required by 
the Local Government Act 2000 

• Officers’ declarations of interest in contracts and 
other pecuniary interests 

• Any other matter relating to the interests of members 
and co-opted members which the County Council 
from time to time establish. 

COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 

11.  To approve (but not refuse) applications from members 
submitted under the Staffordshire Local Community Fund 

COUNCIL 
12.  To approve in consultation with the Chairman of the County 

Council and the Leader of the Council amendments to the 
Council’s list of events, functions, meetings, outside bodies, 
conferences and courses at which attendance is authorised 
as an approved duty; or as within Section 175 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 for the purpose of payment of 
travelling and subsistence allowance to that member 

COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 

13.  To approve in consultation with the Chairman of the County 
Council and the Leader of the Council a member’s 
application for attendance at an event, function, meeting, 
outside body, conference or course not on the County 
Council’s lists referred to in item 9 above as an approved 
duty or as within Section 175 of the Local Government Act 
1972 for the purpose of payment of travelling and 
subsistence allowance to that member 

COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14.  To authorise, after consultation with the Chairman of the 
County Council and the Group Leaders, the payment of 
members’ expenses claims made more than two months 
after the date of a meeting 

COUNCIL 
 
 

15.  To authorise, on the nomination of the Group Leaders, the 
filling of vacancies, or the interchange of members on 
Committees 

COUNCIL 
 

16.  To agree changes to appointments to outside bodies arising 
from changes in Cabinet, members or group nominations 

COUNCIL  
 

17.  To prosecute, withdraw, defend, compromise, appeal and 
appear in proceedings on behalf of the County Council in any 

COUNCIL 
 

Page 34



 DELEGATED POWER OVERALL 
RESPONSIBLE 
BODY 

Court of Law, whether criminal or civil, tribunal, inquiry, 
chamber or other hearing or before any Judge, Registrar, 
Recorder, Magistrate, Coroner, Inspector, Arbitrator, 
Mediator, or Expert (subject to prior consultation with the 
Director for People and Deputy Chief Executive in any case 
where court proceedings are to be instituted in respect of the 
alleged abandonment of assets in the context of the 
assessment of charges for residential care) and to authorise 
officers to exercise any such powers. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18.  To consider and decide upon individual cases relating to the 
alleged abandonment of assets in the context of an 
assessment of charges for residential care where it is 
inappropriate for the Director for People and Deputy Chief 
Executive and/or the Cabinet Member for Adults and 
Wellbeing to deal with the matter (for example by reason of a 
potential conflict of interest). 

COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 

19.  To designate officers of the County Council as being 
authorised under Section 223 of the Local Government Act 
1972 to institute, prosecute, defend or appear on the 
County Council’s behalf in proceedings before a 
Magistrates Court and to conduct such proceedings 
notwithstanding that the officer concerned may not be a 
solicitor holding a current practising certificate 

COUNCIL 
 
 
 

20.  To appoint officers to represent the County Council at the 
County Court in proceedings in chambers generally or in 
the small claims court under the provisions of section 19 of 
the Legal Services Act, 2007, and to represent the County 
Council at such other court venues including the High Court 
sitting in chambers, where permitted, and at Tribunals 

COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 

21.  To support Complaints Review Panels comprising three 
independent persons (ie not elected members) with expert 
knowledge of Children’s Services to consider complaints 
under the Children’s Services Act 1989 and the Local 
Authority Act 1970 which Panel is to make 
recommendations to the County Council on the course of 
action to be taken about any such complaint 

COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 

22.  To make arrangements for dealing with the following kinds 
of appeal under the School Standards and Framework Act 
1998:- 

• Admission appeals 
• Appeals against exclusions 
• Appeals by Governing Bodies 

CABINET  
(LOCAL 
CHOICE) 
 
 

23.  To submit all planning and planning related applications, 
including those for the County Council’s own operational 
development and highway schemes; for the disposal of 
surplus land/property; for Conservation Area consent; and 
for Listed Building consent 

COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Page 35



 DELEGATED POWER OVERALL 
RESPONSIBLE 
BODY 

24.  In consultation with the Chairman of the Planning 
Committee and Director for Place and Deputy Chief 
Executive to decide the final form of the conditions which 
the County Council would wish to be attached to, and the 
framework of, any section 106 Agreement, if the Secretary 
of State for the Environment was minded to grant 
permission for a particular development following an appeal 
in relation thereto 

COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 

25.  In consultation with the Director for Place and Deputy Chief 
Executive, to enter into agreements for the execution of 
highway works under the Highways Act, 1980 

CABINET  
(LOCAL 
CHOICE) 

26.  To exercise the powers and duties of the Council in 
connection with Common Land and Town/Village Greens 
(with the exception of the determination of applications – 
such decisions to be made by the Countryside and Rights of 
Way Panel of the Planning Committee) 
(Officers to have discretion to refer the matter to the 
Countryside and Rights of Way Panel for decision) 
(Appeals against an Officer decision to be referred to the 
Countryside and Rights of Way Panel) 

COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 

27.  On behalf of the County Council to appoint or ratify, as 
appropriate, all members of the Joint Local Access Forum 

COUNCIL 
 

28.  To determine claims made under section 36(6) of the 
Highways Act 1980 for the addition of alleged public 
highways to the list of publicly maintainable highways kept 
by the County Council under that section 

COUNCIL 
 
 

29.  To determine claims made under Section 56 of the 
Highways Act 1980 for the admission by the County Council 
of liability to maintain a highway 

COUNCIL 
 

30.  To determine applications for Modification Orders under the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981unless, after consultation 
with the local County Councillor(s) for the area concerned 
and the Director of Place and Deputy Chief Executive, they 
decide that the matter in question ought properly to be 
determined by the Countryside and Rights of Way Panel 

COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 

31.  To make Gating Orders under Section 129A of the 
Highways Act 1980, in consultation with the Cabinet Lead 
Member for Public Health and Community Safety 

COUNCIL 
 

32.  The power to determine whether an applicant’s details 
should be removed from the Register of Applications made 
under Paragraph 2(3) of the Public Rights of Way (Register 
of Applications under Section 53(5) of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981)(England) Regulations 2005 

COUNCIL 
 
 
 

33.  In the role of Health and Safety ‘Champion’ for the County 
Council, to be responsible for the monitoring of the County 
Council’s Corporate Health and Safety policies. 

COUNCIL 

 

Page 36



TABLE 4 
 

DELEGATIONS TO THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND RESOURCES 
 
 

 
DELEGATION 

OVERALL 
RESPONSIBLE 

BODY 
1. To be the responsible officer for the management of the 

Council’s financial affairs in accordance with Section 151 of the 
Local Government Act 1972 

COUNCIL. 
2. To carry out all Treasury Management activities within the 

Treasury Management Statement and Annual Treasury 
Management Strategy approved from time to time by the 
Cabinet and in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for 
Treasury Management in Local Authorities and Financial 
regulations.  

COUNCIL/CABINET 

3. To take and implement any decision which he/she is 
empowered to take in accordance with Financial Regulations 
and Procurement Regulations in his/her capacity of Director of 
Finance and Resources 

COUNCIL/CABINET 

4. To take any decision relating to the investment or management 
of the Pension Fund which is within the framework of the 
strategic or policy decisions of the Pensions Committee or the 
Pensions Panel which cannot reasonably await the next 
meeting of the Pensions Committee or the Pensions Panel after 
taking advice from a Consultant or Adviser as appropriate 

COUNCIL 

5. To administer the car loans scheme and approve the grant and 
amount of car loans where the requirements of the County 
Council’s scheme are not fully met 

COUNCIL/CABINET 
6. To be (along with the Director of Law and Democracy) the 

County Council’s authorised officer for the purpose of giving 
certificates under the Local Government(Contracts) Act 1997. 
* The County Council has indemnified the Director of Law and 
Democracy and the Director of Finance and Resources against 
any claims made against them (including costs incurred by and 
awarded against them) and will not itself make claims against 
them for any loss or damage (other than claims falling within the 
cover provided to their officers under any policy of insurance 
taken out by the officer) occasioned by neglect, act, error or 
omission committed by such officer in the course of or in 
connection with signing a certificate within the meaning of the 
Local Government (Contracts) Act 1997.  This indemnity will not 
apply where the loss or damage results directly or indirectly 
from the commission of a criminal offence of which the officer is 
convicted, or results directly or indirectly from the fraud or 
dishonesty of the officer, or where the officer disregards a 
decision by the County Council that the certificate should not be 
given. 

COUNCIL 

 PROPERTY  
7. To administer all general asset management of the Council’s 

property estate COUNCIL/CABINET 

Page 37



 
DELEGATION 

OVERALL 
RESPONSIBLE 

BODY 
8. To approve the terms of all disposals where sold at best 

consideration up to and including £1m. COUNCIL/CABINET 
9. To approve the terms of all acquisitions valued up to and 

including £1m. COUNCIL/CABINET 
10. To approve the terms of all disposals by way of leases, 

tenancies, licences etc where they are at best consideration. COUNCIL/CABINET 
11. To approve the terms of all acquisitions by way of leases, 

tenancies, licences etc in accordance with the requirements 
established via the Council’s Strategic Property Board 

COUNCIL/CABINET 
12. To take all necessary steps to secure the cessation of any 

unauthorised use or occupation of the County Council’s land 
and property assets. 

COUNCIL/CABINET 
 ICT  
13. To take and implement any decision which he/she is 

empowered to take in accordance with the ICT Strategy in 
his/her capacity as Director of Finance and Resources 

COUNCIL/CABINET 
 HUMAN RESOURCES  
14. To take and implement any decision he/she is empowered to 

take in accordance with County Council HR policy in his /her 
capacity of Director of Finance and Resources 

COUNCIL 
15. To take and implement any decision on employment legislative 

matters in his/her capacity as Director of Finance and 
Resources 

COUNCIL 
 HEALTH AND SAFETY  
16. To be responsible for the preparation, maintenance and review 

of the County Council’s Corporate Health and Safety policies. COUNCIL 
 

Page 38



 1 

TABLE 5 
 

DELEGATIONS TO THE DIRECTOR FOR PLACE AND  
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 
 

DELEGATION 
OVERALL 

RESPONSIBLE 
BODY 

 HIGHWAYS  
1 To exercise all the powers and duties of the 

County Council under the Highways Act 1980 
(other than Sections 90A to 90i), the 
Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000, the 
Rights of Way Act 1990 and the Road Traffic 
Management Act 2004 in relation to roads, 
highways, footpaths, bridleways and byways 
open to all traffic and to serve all notices and 
take all steps as the Acts may require in 
connection with the exercise of such powers and 
duties 

COUNCIL 

2 After seeking the views in each case of the local 
member(s) of the County Council affected 
thereby and the relevant District Council and 
Parish Council, and provided the local 
member(s) of the County Council so consulted 
do not object thereto, to exercise, the powers 
and duties of the County Council under Sections 
90A to 90i of the Highways Act 1980 (Road 
Humps and other Traffic Calming Works); and 
under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (as 
amended) in respect of the following matters:- 

• Traffic Regulation Orders (Part I of Act) 
• Experimental traffic schemes (Part I of 

Act) 
• Temporary prohibitions and restrictions 

on roads (Part II of Act) 
• Provision of crossings and playgrounds 

(Part III of Act) 
• Provision of on and off-street parking 

(Part IV of Act) 
• Provision and placing of traffic signs (Part 

V of Act) 
• Speed Limits (Part VI of Act) 
• Placing of bollards and other obstructions 

(Part VII of Act) 
• Administrative and other powers and 

duties for the purposes of items (a) to (h) 
above (Parts IX and X of Act) 

COUNCIL 

Page 39



 2 

 
DELEGATION 

OVERALL 
RESPONSIBLE 

BODY 
3 To determine objections to proposed Traffic 

Regulation Orders under paragraph 3 above 
(other than those made by the local members of 
the County Council affected thereby) 
 

COUNCIL 

4 In consultation with the Chief Constable, District 
Councils, County Teachers (and other 
representatives of organisations concerned with 
road safety) to maintain, monitor, review and 
implement a road safety strategy within the 
County Council’s road safety policies 

COUNCIL 

5 To approve District Councils’ proposals under 
Sections 23 (market places) and 38 (cycling in 
pedestrian areas) of the Staffordshire Act 1983 

COUNCIL 

6 To approve District Councils’ applications for 
Orders to amend charges for parking places in 
accordance with the powers contained in 
Section 35 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 
1984 

COUNCIL 

7 To take action on behalf of the County Council, 
after consultation where appropriate with District 
Councils, under Sections 5 (traffic signs), 6 
(damage to footways), 7 (plans of new streets), 
8 (vesting of former highway land) & 10 (grass 
verges etc) of the Staffordshire Act 1983 

COUNCIL 

8 
 

To grant street works licences under the New 
Roads and Street Works Act 1991 

 COUNCIL 
   9 To issue Fixed Penalty Notices under Section 95 

of the New Roads and Street Works Act as 
amended by Section 41 of the Traffic 
Management Act 2004 

 

10 To deal with individual cases where an altered 
highway produces a significant and obvious 
hardship either by the alteration directly or by a 
substantial increase in traffic which has been 
triggered by the alteration and where the total 
cost of providing discretionary noise insulation 
does not exceed the current cost of £5,000 per 
scheme (index linked in subsequent years by 
the national GDP) 

COUNCIL 

11 To take and implement any decisions necessary 
to fulfil the obligations of the County Council 
pursuant to, and in accordance with, a Service 
Level Agreement relating to the Council’s 
participation in the Safety Camera Netting Off 
Scheme partnership, including approving the 
annual operational plan for the Scheme 

COUNCIL 

Page 40



 3 

 
DELEGATION 

OVERALL 
RESPONSIBLE 

BODY 
12 To adopt new streets and private streets as 

highways maintainable at public expense, 
subject to public record being kept of the date of 
the adoption 

COUNCIL 

13 To make temporary closure orders for public 
paths under Section 14 of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 because of works on, or 
near, the path or because of the likelihood of 
danger or damage 

COUNCIL 

14 To authorise the stopping up of parts of the 
highway network under the provisions of Section 
247 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

COUNCIL 

15 To exercise all the powers and duties of the 
County Council under the Flood and Water 
Management Act 2010 and the Flood Risk 
Regulations 2009 

COUNCIL 

 PLANNING  
16 Unless the observations which the Director for 

Place and Deputy Chief Executive proposes to 
give would represent a material departure from a 
policy of the County Council or the County 
Structure Plan, the Minerals Local Plan, the 
Waste Local Plan, or Strategic Policy Guidance, 
for which the County Council is responsible:- 

• To give the County Council’s 
observations to District Councils, 
adjoining authorities, Government 
Departments and Statutory 
Undertakers/Public Utilities in response to 
consultations on planning, planning-
related or environmental applications or 
policy documents 

• To give the County Council’s 
observations to District Councils on 
highway and highway-related matters 

• To give the County Council’s 
observations to the Environment Agency 
in response to consultations on an 
intention to issue an Environmental 
Permit which accords with a previous 
planning permission, or proposed 
modification to an existing permit and any 
proposed exemption 

COUNCIL/ 
CABINET 
(LOCAL 
CHOICE) 

17 To refer to the Secretary of State for the 
Environment any District Council’s proposal for 
its own development which would be detrimental 
to the County Council’s interests or which would 

COUNCIL 

Page 41



 4 

 
DELEGATION 

OVERALL 
RESPONSIBLE 

BODY 
be contrary to the County Council’s views 

18 To authorise the Peak Park Authority to 
discharge the County Council’s powers and 
functions under the Ancient Monuments and 
Archaeological Areas Act 1979 in respect of that 
part of the Peak District National Park which is 
within Staffordshire, without prejudice to the 
exercise concurrently by the County Council 
within that area of their powers under the Act 

COUNCIL  

19 Where there is no objection to the application or 
matter in question from: 

• The Chairman of the Planning Committee 
or the nominated opposition 
spokesperson; or 

• The relevant District Council or Parish 
Council; or 

• The Local Member of the County Council; 
or 

• A statutory consultee other than Sport 
England 

and no more than four letters of objection on 
planning grounds have been received (or such 
objection does not amount to a material planning 
consideration) then the Director may (subject at 
the Director’s discretion to consult with the 
Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Planning 
Committee) decide to: 

• Grant planning permission for the County 
Council’s own development other than 
those relating to proposals of the relevant 
Portfolio Holder 

• Grant planning permission for minerals 
and waste developments which do not 
involve the development of a substantial 
new site or the significant extension of an 
existing site 

• Refer applications for the County 
Council’s own development to the 
Secretary of State where the application 
involves a Listed Building or development 
in the Green Belt or Sport England have 
objected 

• To grant or refuse a Certificate of 
Lawfulness (CLU) for minerals and/or 
waste development 

• Where there is a material planning 

COUNCIL/ 
CABINET 
(LOCAL 
CHOICE)  

Page 42



 5 

 
DELEGATION 

OVERALL 
RESPONSIBLE 

BODY 
objection to the application or matter in 
question, to refuse planning permission 
for minerals or waste development except 
in the case of a substantial new site or 
the significant extension of an existing 
site 

20 Subject to first consulting the Director of Law 
and Democracy: 

• To determine whether or not to take 
formal action 

• To issue or withdraw an Enforcement 
Notice, or waive or relax any 
requirements of the Notice 

• To serve a Planning Contravention Notice 
• To serve a Breach of Condition Notice 
• To seek an Injunction in respect of an 

actual breach or an apprehended breach 
of planning control 

• To serve a Notice relating to replacement 
of trees 

• To serve a Temporary Stop Notice 
• To issue notices seeking details of the 

ownership of a site 
• To approve the commencement of legal 

proceedings for non-compliance with any 
notice 

COUNCIL  

21 To authorise the serving of a Stop Notice in 
conjunction with an Enforcement Notice, subject 
to the approval of the Chairman or (in his 
absence) the Vice-Chairman of Planning 
Committee and to consultation with the Director 
of Law and Democracy and the Local Member.  
Sub delegated only to Head of Economy 

COUNCIL  

22 To consider any representations or offers which 
any person upon whom a Planning 
Contravention Notice has been served may wish 
to make and to take such decisions in relation 
thereto as the Director thinks fit 
 

COUNCIL  

23 To approve matters reserved for later approval 
following consent in principle given by the 
Planning Committee or detailed submissions  
pursuant to conditions imposed by the County 
Council 

COUNCIL  

24 To approve submissions by mineral undertakers 
and the Coal Authority under the provisions of 

COUNCIL  

Page 43



 6 

 
DELEGATION 

OVERALL 
RESPONSIBLE 

BODY 
the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 1995 and 
subsequent orders and applications for prior 
notification under Parts 6, 19, 20 21, 22, 23 and 
31 of that order, and to determine applications 
for prior approval 

25 To take decisions on the need for  
• An environmental assessment in relation 

to a particular application/scheme of 
conditions/planning or enforcement 
appeal  

• And reasons for issuing a screening 
opinion 

• Matters to be covered in a scoping 
opinion 

COUNCIL  

26 In the case of extreme urgency and in 
consultation with the Chairman of the Planning 
Committee to issue directions under the Town 
and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 1995 with regard to a 
restriction of permitted development 

COUNCIL 

27 To give, in consultation with the Chairman of the 
Planning Committee, a Direction that a Tree 
Preservation Order shall have immediate effect 
without previous confirmation, subject to and 
under Section 201 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 

COUNCIL  

28 To arrange for a site visit to be held in 
connection with any development control matter 
where in the opinion of the Director for Place 
and Deputy Chief Executive the consideration of 
that matter would be facilitated or enhanced by 
such visit; and on any such site visit to arrange 
for the attendance of the Chairman of the 
Planning Committee and such Members of the 
Planning Committee as may be appropriate, and 
the local member(s) of the County Council 
affected by the matter, and where the Director 
for Place and Deputy Chief Executive considers 
it appropriate, for the relevant District Council 
and/or Parish Council to be represented, 
provided that no decision in relation to that 
matter shall be taken on the site visit 

COUNCIL  

29 To agree to requests for extensions of time for 
the submission and/or of a Scheme of 
Conditions under the Environment Act 1995 
where a concurrent consolidation application for 

COUNCIL 

Page 44



 7 

 
DELEGATION 

OVERALL 
RESPONSIBLE 

BODY 
planning permission has been made and the 
submission of such a Scheme would not be 
required were the planning permission applied 
for to be granted 

 FOOTPATHS AND PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY  
30 To exercise all the powers and duties of the 

County Council under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981, Countryside and Rights 
of Way Act 2000 and the Conservation of 
Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 in 
relation to the operation and management of it’s 
country parks and public access lands 

COUNCIL 

31 To designate a footpath as a cycle track under 
the Cycle Tracks Act 1984 

COUNCIL  
32 To keep the register of prescribed information 

with respect to applications under Section 53(5) 
of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 

COUNCIL  

33 To enter into agreements with respect to means 
of access to any access land under Section 35 
of the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 
and to provide access in the absence of such 
agreement under Section 37 of that Act 

COUNCIL  

34 To authorise the stopping up or diversion of a 
footpath or bridleway and to extinguish public 
rights of way over land held for planning 
purposes under Sections 257 and 258 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

COUNCIL  

35 To determine, in the case of non-contentious 
applications and those arising at the County 
Council’s own volition, applications for Definitive 
Map Modification Orders under Section 53 of the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, subject to 
consultation with the Local Member(s), and 
referral to the Countryside Rights of Way Panel 
if the matter becomes contentious 

COUNCIL  

36 To exercise all the powers and duties of the 
County Council under the Reservoirs Act 1975 
and the Mines and Quarries Act 1954 in relation 
to the management of the Reservoirs and water 
bodies on it’s country parks and public access 
lands 

CABINET 

 W2R  
37 To make any decisions classified as “Authority 

Representative Matters” on behalf of 
Staffordshire County Council and the Contract 
Management Board in connection with the 
operation of Project W2R except where such 

CABINET 

Page 45



 8 

 
DELEGATION 

OVERALL 
RESPONSIBLE 

BODY 
matters have been specifically reserved for 
Cabinet decision 

38 The Director for Place and Deputy Chief 
Executive and the Contract Manager be 
authorised to make any decisions on “Contract 
Board Matters” on behalf of Staffordshire County 
Council in connection with the operation of 
Project W2R except where such matters are 
reserved for Cabinet decision 

CABINET 

 LAND AND PROPERTY  
39 To take all steps in connection with the 

administration and management of the County 
Farms Estate including the purchase and 
disposal of land, the acquisition and granting of 
tenancies, licences and wayleaves, the serving 
of notices in connection with either estate, the 
granting of consent for alterations in the property 
or its use, and the settlement of rents, rent 
reviews, compensation and/or valuations where 
relevant 

CABINET 

40 Jointly with the Director of Finance and 
Resources, the approval of short term licences 
(up to three months) for car parking  

CABINET 

41 To authorise the Peak Park Authority to 
discharge the County Council’s functions, as 
contained in the Countryside Act 1968, in 
relation to land at the former Waterhouses 
Railway Station 

CABINET 

 PUBLIC PROTECTION  
42 To appoint qualified person(s) to hold the 

following statutory offices:- 
• Public Analyst for the purposes of the 

Food Safety Act 1990 and Agricultural 
Analyst for the purposes of the 
Agriculture Act 1970 

• Deputy Public Analyst for the purposes of 
the Food Safety Act 1990 

• Deputy Agricultural Analyst for the 
purposes of the Agriculture Act 1970 

• Chief Inspector of Weights and Measures 
for the purposes of the Weights and 
Measures Act 1985 

COUNCIL 

43 To be the  Proper Officer to undertake the 
council’s function with regard to the appointment 
of coroner or deputy and to have responsibility 
for financial expenditure 

COUNCIL 

Page 46



 9 

 
DELEGATION 

OVERALL 
RESPONSIBLE 

BODY 
44 To designate staff of the service under the 

Petroleum (Consolidation) Act 1928 
(Enforcement) Regulations 1979 as Inspectors 
for the purposes of Section 20(2)(a)-(m) of the 
Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 and to vary 
or terminate an Inspector’s powers 

COUNCIL 

45 To designate staff of the service as Inspector, 
Authorised Officer and/or Sampling Officer, as 
the case may be, for all purposes under 
legislation conferring powers or duties on the 
County Council in respect of the protection of 
the public, consumers, animals both wild and 
domestic, or the environment, and the 
enforcement of which the County Council are 
empowered to undertake; and to confer on them 
all powers which the County Council may confer 
for the purposes of determining whether or not 
the provisions of such legislation and any Orders 
and Regulations are being complied with and all 
powers of enforcing the same in accordance 
with the relevant legal provisions for doing so 

COUNCIL 

46 To designate staff of the service as being 
authorised, after receipt of the necessary 
information, to issue or where so authorised to 
refuse or to revoke any licences or to register 
any persons or premises or to issue certificates 
and collect any fees pursuant to legislation 
referred to in paragraph 43 above upon such 
terms and conditions as may be appropriate in 
each case 

COUNCIL 

47 To refuse to renew licences where licensees 
have failed to submit the appropriate petroleum 
spirit storage tank test certificate and/or the 
appropriate petroleum spirit store electrical 
installation test certificate by the due date 
 

COUNCIL 

48 To authorise, in cases of urgency and subject to 
consultation with the Chairman of the Planning 
Committee 

• An application to a court under the Safety 
of Sports Grounds Act 1975 to prohibit or 
restrict the admission of spectators; 

• The issue of a prohibition notice under 
the Fire Safety and Safety of places of 
Sport Act 1987 when the risk to 
spectators at a ground is so great that 
until steps have been taken to reduce it to 

COUNCIL 

Page 47



 10 

 
DELEGATION 

OVERALL 
RESPONSIBLE 

BODY 
a reasonable level, the admission of 
spectators ought to be restricted or 
prohibited  

• The serving of a preliminary notice to 
enforce safety at outdoor sports grounds 
where it is confirmed that a stand 
provides cover for more than 500 people 

49 To make technical amendments to Safety 
Certificates 

COUNCIL 
50 To initiate the process of charging an individual 

at a Police Station 
COUNCIL 

51 To commence as a Responsible Authority a 
review of a premise licence where the 
circumstances reveal that there has been a 
breach of Licensing Objectives 

COUNCIL 

52 To make an application to a court for a warrant 
pursuant to legislation referred to in paragraph 
45 above 

COUNCIL 

53 To approve information sharing protocols with 
other agencies 

COUNCIL 
54 To authorise officers and persons appointed by 

the Proper Officer from outside the authority to 
act under Trading Standards legislation as 
specified in any formal joint working 
arrangements 

COUNCIL 

 CULTURE AND LEISURE  
55  To take decisions on the allocation of grants 

from the County Council’s Arts Grants Scheme 
CABINET 

56 To authorise the disposal of artefacts from the 
County Museum collection 

CABINET 
57 To sign off grant applications for grants over 

£50,0000 
CABINET 

 GENERAL  
58 To enter into all necessary agreements for the 

provision of vehicles required by the Council 
including those under the corporate staff car 
leasing scheme 

CABINET 

 

Page 48



TABLE 6 
 

DELEGATIONS TO THE DIRECTOR OF CUSTOMER SERVICES  
AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 
 

DELEGATION 
OVERALL 

RESPONSIBLE 
BODY 

1.  To approve premises as a venue for marriage in pursuance of 
section 26(1)bb of the Marriage Act 1949 and as a venue for Civil 
Partnerships in pursuance of Section 6 (3A) (a) of the Civil 
Partnership Act 2004. 

COUNCIL 

2.  To carry out the County Council’s duties under the Marriage Act 
1949 and the Civil Partnership Act 2004 (other than those relating 
to fees and appeals) 

COUNCIL 
 

Page 49



Page 50



TABLE 7 
 

DELEGATION TO THE DIRECTOR OF STRATEGY AND 
TRANSFORMATION AND ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 
 

DELEGATION 
OVERALL 

RESPONSIBLE 
BODY 

1. To be the host Chief Executive for West Midlands Councils. CABINET 
 

Page 51



Page 52



STOKE-ON-TRENT AND STAFFORDSHIRE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY 
 

 

 

 
Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Authority 

Periodic Report of the Chairman on Authority Matters 
 

Official Opening of Sandyford Community Fire Station by  
HRH the Earl of Wessex  

 
1. I am delighted to advise that the official opening of Sandyford Community Fire 
Station took place on 3 May 2011 and was attended by His Royal Highness The Earl 
of Wessex.  
 
The opening included a tour of the new facilities to see what was available to local 
people in that area.  These new facilities would allow the Service and its partners to 
engage more effectively with those they served and provide an opportunity to 
empower and encourage local people to make a real difference to their community. 
 

Uttoxeter Community Fire Station Opens its Doors 
 
2. Firefighters in Uttoxeter had been responding from their new base since February 
2011.  The station opened to the community in April and a number of drop in 
sessions took place over the Easter Holidays on 15, 16, 19 and 20 April and saw 800 
visitors.  Visitors were given a tour of the new station and had the opportunity to find 
out more about the fire and rescue service.  
 
The old fire station was built in 1960 and was designed to keep members of the 
public out - this building was exactly the opposite as it provided a community facility 
that also happened to be a fire station.  It was hoped that the local community would 
embrace the new station.  The building was very impressive with state of the art 
facilities for both the firefighters and the community.  The team had worked 
extremely hard to ensure that this project was delivered on time, to an excellent 
quality and to budget.  Bookings were now being taken for the community room 
which could comfortably accommodate up to 20 people. 
 
Uttoxeter was the fourth in a line of ten new community fire stations being built under 
a private finance initiative (PFI) project.  The consortium delivering the project was 
called Fire Support; the Construction company, Stepnell, constructed the £2.1 million 
building and COFELY Ltd were to provide the ongoing facilities management. 
 
The official opening of the Uttoxeter Community Fire Station will be held on 4 July 
2011.  

 
Cannock Community Fire Station  

 
3. Cannock firefighters moved into their brand new community fire station on Monday 
28 February 2011.  The building costing £4.3 million was also built under the private 
finance initiative (PFI) project.  Cannock is the fifth in a line of ten new community 
fire stations being built under the PFI project.  Four community fire stations have 
already opened in Rising Brook, Sandyford, Tamworth and Uttoxeter.   
 
Demolition of the old fire station has been completed and it was anticipated that the 
training yard and car park will be completed by mid July.  The station will open to the 
community in the summer once the site is completed.  An official opening of the 
Cannock Community Fire Station will take place later in the year.    

Agenda Item 14

Page 53



STOKE-ON-TRENT AND STAFFORDSHIRE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY 
 

 

 

 
Corporate Safety Plan 2011-14  

 
4. The Corporate Safety Plan 2011-14 combines the Integrated Risk Management 
Plan (Safety Plan) and the Strategic Plan.  The progress of the plan had been 
monitored through the Service Development Panel.  Consultation had taken place 
with members of staff and other key stakeholders.  The views and opinions captured 
during this process had been considered in the formulation of the draft document.  
The external consultation period for the Corporate Safety plan 2011-14 commenced 
on 1 November 2010 and concluded on 31 January 2011.  This covered a wide 
range of consultees including all fire and rescue authorities in England, local 
authorities, partner agencies, focus groups representing members of the public, 
community groups and staff at all levels in the organisation.  The production of the 
easy to read plan had entailed a significant amount of work by both officers and 
Members.    
 
The final document had now been produced and was available on the Authority’s 
web site.  The hard copy document would be circulated to various points around the 
Authority’s Area.    
 

Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations - Draft Statement of  
Employer Discretions 

 
5. The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations contained a number 
of discretionary powers.  As an employing authority Staffordshire Fire and Rescue 
Service (SFRS) was required to formulate and keep under review policy statements 
concerning the exercise of those discretionary powers.  Two policy statements had 
recently been made in accordance with the requirements of the administering 
authority.  These Policy Statements stated that there was no limit on the amount of 
weeks pay used in the calculation of redundancy payments, and that discretionary 
compensation payments would not be made.  The Policy reflected the Authority’s 
chosen approach of minimising redundancy and associated pension costs and 
thereby protecting as many livelihoods as possible.      
 

Report of the Chief Fire Officer/Chief Executive 
 
6. There had been 15 fire casualties in the period October to December 2010, an 
increase of 7 (87.5%) when compared to the same quarter in 2009.   
 
There had been 5 fire deaths during the current quarter.  The trend in fire deaths 
seemed to be linked to the increase in vulnerability and it was therefore important for 
the Service to change its approach to Home Fire Risk Checks and to focus on the 
route causes of vulnerability.  The demographic changes over the next few years 
would mean an increase in the number of elderly vulnerable people.  The “Olive 
Branch” project had made considerable progress in working with partner agencies to 
identify and visit vulnerable persons.  
 
The number of primary fires had decreased from 487 in October – December 2009 
to 477 for the same period in 2010.  There were 3500 primary fires in 2005 
compared to less than 2000 last year.   
 

Page 54



STOKE-ON-TRENT AND STAFFORDSHIRE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY 
 

 

 

 
There were 168 accidental dwelling fires for October – December 2010 compared to 
170 in the same quarter of 2009.  Last year was the worst in seven years and this 
continued to be a serious problem and was therefore a high priority for the Safer 
Communities Directorate.   
 
Grass fires had decreased by 39 for the thrid quarter of 2010 when compared to the 
same period in 2009. 
 
Small fires excluding grass fires had dropped from 487 in October – December 2009 
to 392 in the same period for 2010.  This shows a reduction of 95, and was the 
lowest number to date.   
 
The electric blanket campaign, now in its eleventh year, ran between September and 
October 2010.  The partnership with Trading Standards, Morphy Richards and local 
community groups in Staffordshire was aimed at reducing the likelihood of fires 
caused by electric blankets.  The cost to the Service this year was £12,000.  2227 
blankets were tested and 903 failed and were replaced with new blankets compared 
to 824 last year.  Each of the faulty blankets was a potential ignition source.    
 
Firefighters involved in the rescue of a horse that had fallen through ice at Patshull 
Park on Christmas Day 2010 were thanked for their actions by the RSPCA who 
presented commendations to them on 30 March 2011.  
 
The 2011 MORE Awards had again proved successful.  The Awards were held at 
the Moat House, Festival Park.  Mr Peter Davies was presented with the Sonja 
Oatley Award for Members’ involvement in the Community and he has been 
congratulated by the Authority.  
 
The Authority considered a report on the progress of Sprinkler Legislation including 
the Domestic Fire Safety Measures for Wales requiring sprinklers for all new builds; 
the private Members Bill currently passing through parliament and due to go through 
to the third stage; and the involvement by the Service and CFOA in the update of the 
Building Research Establishment report of 2004 which stated that sprinklers were 
not cost effective.   
 
Members of the Authority indicated their support for the Sprinkler Legislation.  Some 
Members expressed their disappointment that the new County Council offices in 
Tipping Street, Stafford would not have sprinklers fitted.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

L W Bloomer 
Chairman 

Page 55



Page 56



County Council – 12 May 2011 
 

The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information 
(England) Regulations 2000 

 
Regulation 16 – Special Urgency Procedures 

 
No. 
 

Date of Cabinet 
Meeting 

 
Subject Matter 

 
Reason 

26 23 March 2011 Chasewater 
Country Park and 
Reservoir  

(i) There are significant, and growing, 
financial and legal implications of the 
works taking place on site.  It is 
essential that decisions are taken to 
correctly proportion those costs across 
the two authorities.  It is also important 
to identify who would be responsible for 
any future liabilities as they arise and 
the point in time any such liabilities are 
transferred. 
(ii) There are risks of non compliance 
with any forthcoming Environment 
Agency inspection of the site.  It is 
imperative that both authorities can 
evidence to the Environment Agency the 
actions taken to expedite the work at the 
site and be explicit as to who would be 
responsible for rectifying any non 
compliance.  
(iii) It is imperative that a clear decision 
and direction from the Cabinet is 
obtained as soon as possible to mitigate 
the risks to the County Council, Lichfield 
District Council and the taxpayer.    

 
 
 P.E.B. Atkins 
 Leader of the Council 
 
 
 
Contact: Mike Bradbury (01785) 276133 
 

Agenda Item 15

Page 57



Page 58



Agenda Item 18

Page 59

Not for publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 

of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972

Document is Restricted



Page 60


	Agenda
	General Housekeeping and Declaring an Interest
	4 Confirmation of the minutes of the Council meeting held on 17 March 2011
	9 Statement of the Leader of the Council
	11 Proposed Changes to the Constitution
	Changes to the Constitution Appendix 2 - Scrutiny Committee Remits
	Changes to the Constitution Appendix 3 PREAMBLE
	ALL OFFICERS TABLE 1
	Chief Executive TABLE 2
	D of L&D  TABLE 3
	D of F & R TABLE 4
	D for PLACE -table 5
	D of Customer Services and Comms TABLE 6
	D of Strat and Trans TABLE 7

	14 To consider the report of the Chairman of the Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Authority
	15 Special Urgency Procedures - Quarterly update
	18 Exempt Special Urgency Procedures - Quarterly update

